
=City of 
1.0 Chesterfield 

AGENDA REVIEW MEETING 
CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL 

Monday, December 7, 2015 
5:45PM 

To view the full City Council Packet (CLICK HERE) 

1. Finance and Administration Committee — Chairperson Barry Flachsbart, Ward I 

A. Public Hearing re: Proposed FY2016 Budget (6:30pm) 

B. Resolution No. 418 — Adopts FY2016 Budget 

2. Planning and Public Works Committee — Chairperson Connie Fults, Ward IV 

A. Bill No. 3059 - P.Z. 09-2015, Friendship Village of West County (15239, 15249 and 15255 
Olive Blvd.) (SECOND READING) 

B. River Valley Drive Closure Project (VOICE VOTE) 

C. Next meeting - Thursday, December 10, 2015 (5:30pm) 

3. Report from the City Administrator — Michael G. Herring 

A. 

4. New Business —Mayor Bob Nation 

5. Adjourn — 

6. Executive Session — Closed Meeting (RSMo 610.021 (13) 

A. Personnel Matters 

PSwaim
Text Box



NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other matters as 
may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for discussion at that time. 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the purpose of 
dealing with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, causes of action, 
litigation or privileged communications between the City's representatives and its attorneys (RSMo 
610.021(1) 1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, 
disciplining or promoting employees within employee groups (RSMo 610.021(3) 1994; bidding 
specification (RSMo 610.021(11) 1994; and/or proprietary technological materials (RSMo 
610.021(15) 1994. 



e
aim City of 

 hesterfield 
AGENDA 

CHESTERFIELD CITY COUNCIL MEETING 
Chesterfield City Hall 

690 Chesterfield Parkway West 
Monday, December 7, 2015 

To view the full City Council Packet (CLICK HERE) 

6:30PM — PUBLIC HEARING: Proposed FY2016 Budget 

I. CALL TO ORDER —Mayor Bob Nation 

II. PRESENTATION — Proposed FY2016 Budget — City Administrator Michael Herring 

III. DISCUSSION — Mayor Bob Nation 

IV. ADJOURNMENT — Mayor Bob Nation 

7:00PM — REGULAR MEETING 

I. CALL TO ORDER — Mayor Bob Nation 

II. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE — Mayor Bob Nation 

III. MOMENT OF SILENT PRAYER — Mayor Bob Nation 

IV. ROLL CALL —City Clerk Vickie Hass 

V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES — Mayor Bob Nation 

A. City Council Meeting Minutes — November 16, 2015 

PSwaim
Text Box



VI. INTRODUCTORY REMARKS - Mayor Bob Nation 

A. April 5 City Election - Qualifying Period - Opens Tuesday, December 15 at 8 a.m. - 
Closes Tuesday, January 19 at 5 p.m. 

B. City Hall Holiday Closings — 12/24 —half day, 12/25 — All day; 1/1/16 — all day 

C. Next City Council Meeting — Monday, January 4, 2016 

VII. COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS - Mayor Bob Nation 

VIII. APPOINTMENTS - Mayor Bob Nation 

IX. COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

A. Finance and Administration Committee — Chairperson Barry Flachsbart, Ward I 

1. Resolution No. 418 — Adopts FY2016 Budget 

B. Planning and Public Works Committee — Chairperson Connie Fults, Ward IV 

1. Bill No. 3059 - P.Z. 09-2015, Friendship Village of West County (15239, 15249 and 
15255 Olive Blvd.) (SECOND READING) 

2. River Valley Drive Closure Project (VOICE VOTE) 

3. Next meeting - Thursday, December 10, 2015 (5:30pm) 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR - Michael G. Herring 

A. 

XI. OLD BUSINESS - Mayor Bob Nation 

XII. NEW BUSINESS - Mayor Bob Nation 

XIII. LEGISLATION 



XIV. LEGISLATION - PLANNING COMMISSION 

A. BILL NO. 3059 AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN 
"NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT TO AN "R-4" RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT FOR A 2.13 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF OLIVE BOULEVARD AND 
BRAEFIELD DRIVE (SECOND READING; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

XV. ADJOURNMENT 

NOTE: City Council will consider and act upon the matters listed above and such other 
matters as may be presented at the meeting and determined to be appropriate for discussion at that time. 

Notice is hereby given that the City Council may also hold a closed meeting for the purpose of dealing 
with matters relating to one or more of the following: legal actions, causes of action, litigation or 
privileged communications between the City's representatives and its attorneys (RSMo 610.021(1) 
1994; lease, purchase or sale of real estate (RSMo 610.021(2) 1994; hiring, firing, disciplining or 
promoting employees with employee groups (RSMo 610.021(3) 1994; bidding specification (RSMo 
610.021(11) 1994; and/or proprietary technological materials (RSMo 610.021(15) 1994. 



AGENDA REVIEW — Monday, December 7 — 5:45PM 

Please note that an AGENDA REVIEW meeting has been scheduled for 5:45pm, on Monday, December 7, 
2015. The enclosed AGENDA contains a list of those items to be discussed, by City Council, at this 
meeting. 

As always, if you have any questions regarding any of the items contained within said AGENDA, 
please let me know. Additionally, if there is anything that you would like ADDED to said AGENDA, 
please contact either Mayor Nation, or me, prior to Monday's meeting. 



PROPOSED FY2016 BUDGET — PUBLIC HEARING (6:30PM) 

As you know, this proposed budget is the twenty-ninth budget I've had the honor/privilege of 
preparing, on your collective behalf, as Chesterfield's City Administrator. Having prepared and 
forwarded the proposed budgets to you, in early-October and then presenting the proposed budgets to 
you, publicly, at the F&A Committee-of-the-Whole BUDGET WORKSHOP, on November 16, I am 
now required, by ordinance, to present the proposed budget at a PUBLIC HEARING, which has been 
scheduled to take place at 6:30pm, in the City Council Chambers, this coming Monday, 
December 7. The proposed budgets reflect the changes approved by City Council, at that November 
16 meeting. 

As a reminder and as detailed in the enclosed MINUTES, from the F&A Committee-of-the-Whole 
meeting, those members of City Council in attendance voted unanimously to recommend approval of 
both the proposed FY2016 Budgets for the General Fund and the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund, 
as amended. The vote to recommend approval of the proposed Parks Sales Tax Fund budget, as 
amended, was 5-1, with Councilmember DeGroot voting "no". Councilmember Hurt was unable to 
attend this meeting and Councilmember McGuinness was not yet a member of City Council. 

As is always the case, please contact any member of the Management Team or me, prior to Monday's 
meeting, if you have any remaining questions. Please note that the proposed FY2016 Budget is 
scheduled for adoption, during the regular City Council meeting, under the report of F&A Committee 
Chairperson Barry Flachsbart (see below). 



11-30-151'03:16 I-c!C v0 

- 	__-.-:-- 	
-- 

,-_=---_ 	
-----= 

iff  .....ii! 	.........„ 

_.... 

om,Pw• City of 
IZ: Chesterfield 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD PUBLIC NOTICE  

PROPOSED FY2016 BUDGET - PUBLIC HEARING 
MONDAY, DECEMBER 7, 2015 - 6:30PM  

The City of Chesterfield will hold a public hearing on the 
proposed budget for Fiscal Year 2016 at 6:30 p.m., 
Monday, December 7, 2015, in the Council Chambers, 
690 Chesterfield Parkway West, Chesterfield, Missouri 
63017. A copy of the proposed budget is available for 
public inspection at City Hall at the same address 
during the hours of 8:30 a.m. and 5:00 p.m., Monday 
through Friday. 

•L. 
Craig 	hite 
Financ-e/  Director 

POSTED THIS 30 th day of November, 2015 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Members — F&A Committee 

FROM: 	Michael G. Herring, City Administrator 

DATE: 	November 23, 2015 

SUBJECT: 	Minutes — 11-16-2015 

The Finance and Administration Committee of the Whole met on November 16, 2015. 
Those in attendance included: Chairperson Barry Flachsbart, Ward I; Council Committee 
Member Elliot Grissom, Ward II; Council Committee Member Bruce DeGroot, Ward IV; 
City Administrator Mike Herring; Finance Director Craig White; Director of Public 
Services Mike Geisel; and Interim City Attorney Harry O'Rourke. Those also in 
attendance included: Councilmember Bridget Nations, Ward II; Councilmember Mike 
Casey, Ward III; Councilmember Connie Fults, Ward IV; Chief of Police Ray Johnson; 
Director of Public Works, Jim Eckrich; Director of Economic Development, Libbey 
Tucker; Planning and Development Services Director, Aimee Nassif; Police Captain, Ed 
Nestor; Police Captain, Steve Lewis, Management Analyst, James Mello Jr, two members 
of the press, and 4 members of the public. 

Chairperson Barry Flachsbart called the meeting to order at 5:30 p.m. 

1. Introduction 

Mr. Herring, City Administrator, introduced himself and Craig White, Finance Director. 
Mr. Herring then gave a general overview of the purpose of the meeting and the order in 
which the information would be presented. 

2. Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 

Mr. Herring explained the details regarding the projected FY2015 performance of the 
Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund. The 1/2-cent capital improvement sales tax is 
collected on a point-of-sale basis. However, the City loses 15% of the amount generated 
to the St. Louis County Sales Tax Pool. Revenue projections, through 12/31/15, are 
expected to total $7,680,118 of that $6,082,573 is from sales taxes. Expenditures, as of 
12/31/15, are expected to total $7,912,873 which includes numerous capital construction 
projects, citywide, and debt service payments are expected to total $1,941,292. Current 
projections indicate that fund reserves, as of 12/31/15, are projected to be $1,482,756. 
However, revenues for the months of October, November and December have not yet been 
received and could impact the ending fund balance, within this Fund. 

1 



The following list of FY2015 budgeted expenditures was presented. 

Asphalt Overlays $ 	167,000 

Concrete Street Reconstruction Program 1,950,000 

Ladue Road Construction 2,490,000 

Timberlake Bridge Construction 900,000 

Trench Grate Replacement 20,000 

Sidewalk Replacement 200,000 

Radios 55,000 

Olive and Woodsmille 24,000 

Route 141 Beautification 157,000 

Misc Landscaping Improvements 102,582 

PW Facility Waste Oil Heaters (2) 24,800 

Tandem Dump Truck 148,102 

2.5 Ton Dump Truck 131,670 

1 Ton Flatbed Truck 58,183 

1.5 Ton Dump Truck 68,000 

Truck Equipment 59,100 

Salaries/Benefits 214,569 

Crack sealing 147,000 

Seal Parking Garage Deck 65,000 

South Greentrails Drive Design 183,000 

App Trail Phase 2 Design 120,000 

Wilson Road Design 160,000 

Kelm Mill / Long Road 49,000 

Inspection/Testing Services 273,000 

Veterans Honor Park 46,000 

TDD Beautification 65,000 

Grant Applications 23,000 

Other Design 10,125 

$ 	7,911,131 

Councilmember Casey commented that the road improvements completed in Ward III 
during the year were well done. 

During FY2016, this Y2-cent sales tax will fund the projects noted below, as well as the 
annual debt service payment, on a $30 million bond issue. In FY2016, revenues are 

2 



projected to total approximately $9,883,623, which includes $6,265,050 in sales tax and 
$3,618,073 in grant funds, for the Schoettler Road Bridge Right-of-Way, Greentrails 
reconstruction, Chesterfield East Pedestrian Bridge, and the CNG Conversion. City Staff 
has been aggressive in seeking grant funds to supplement dollars from this Fund, which 
are used for major capital improvement projects. Proposed capital expenditures for FY2016 
are $10,059,030 which includes some carry-forward for unfinished FY2015 projects. 

The following schedule of FY2016 budgeted expenditures was presented: 

Greentrails Drive South 	 $ 	2,225,000 

Chesterfield Pkwy East Pedestrian Bridge 	 1,991,000 

Concrete Street Reconstruction 	 1,950,000 

(7) 2.5 Ton Dump Replacement CNG 	 1,330,000 

Design and Construction of CNG Station 	 1,048,030 

Wilson Road culvert replacement 	 420,000 

Selective Slab Replacement 	 250,000 

(3) 1.5 Ton Flat Bed Replacement CNG 	 246,000 

Asphalt Overlays 	 225,000 

Sidewalk Replacement (CDGB Grant) 	 200,000 

(2) 1 Ton Flat Bed Replacement CNG 	 154,000 

Trench Grate Replacement 	 20,000 

Salaries/Benefits 	 256,492 

Inspection/Testing - slab/sidewalk/asphalt 	 115,000 

Crack sealing 	 105,000 

Schoettler Rd Bridge ROW Acquisitions 	 55,000 

Culvert Repair/Fencing 	 25,000 

Misc. Inspection and Construction Testing 	 25,000 

Misc. design 	 20,000 

South Outer 1-64 Phase I Grant Application 	 20,000 

Misc. Capital Contracts 	 10,000 

Schoettler Rd Phase I Grant Application 	10,000 

$ 	10,700,522 

As previously noted, it is City Council's policy to spend all funds available, within this 
Fund, on an annual basis. Based upon the projects scheduled for completion, during 
FY2016, Fund Reserves should be reduced to a balance of just $572,639, as of 12/31/16. 

Councilmember Casey asked a clarifying question regarding the differences between CNG 
and propane, which was addressed by Director of Public Services Mike Geisel. 

3 



3. Park Sakes Tax Fund 

Mr. Herring explained the details regarding the projected FY2015 performance regarding 
the Parks Sales Tax Fund. The Parks Fund is supported by a 1A-cent sales tax and, unlike 
the General Fund Sales Tax and the Capital Improvement Sales Tax, the city receives 100% 
of the revenue from this tax, which is generated on a point-of-sale basis. Staff projections 
for 12/31/15 indicate total revenue of $9,588,987, which is within 1.7% of the original 
budget projections. Total expenditures, including transfers out of the fund, totaled 
$9,862,107. Debt service payments, during FY2015, totaled $2,867,307 and reflect savings 
realized by a City Council-authorized refinancing in FY2014. Current projections, indicate 
that ending fund reserves, as of 12/31/15, will be $2,762,105, with $377,735 available, 
above the City's "40% Policy". 

During FY2016, the Parks Sales Tax is estimated to generate approximately $9,139,468 in 
revenue. During FY2016, sales taxes are projected to increase by 3.0% for a total of 
$7,369,485. It was noted that revenues generated by "user fees", at recreation facilities, 
like the Chesterfield Valley Athletic Complex and Family Aquatic Center, represent 
approximately 18% of total revenues and are anticipated to total $1,728,983. 

FY2016 expenditures are projected to total $9,079,883 ($6,156,526 for the operating 
budget, $2,923,357 in debt service payments and related fees). The debt service payments 
reflect savings realized, due to a refinancing that occurred, in 2014. Three new positions, 
a Recreation Aide and two CVAC Facility Attendants are proposed to be added, during 
FY2016. Total revenues are projected to be $59,585 above expenditures, including 
transfers and debt payments, and fund reserves are projected to increase to $2,821,690, or 
$359,080 above the "40% policy". 

4. General Fund 

Mr. Herring explained the details of the projected performance of the FY2015 General 
Fund Budget. The FY2015 General Fund Budget currently projects revenues to total 
$21,824,957, or within 0.7% of the original budget. General Fund expenditures and net 
transfers are projected to total $19,687,022 and $1,469,777, respectively. Total 
expenditures are projected to finish 3.6% below budget. During FY2015, City Council 
approved a planned use of Fund Reserves, above the "40% Policy", to cover a number of 
one-time expenditures totaling $2,751,180 and included items such as the new HVAC 
system at City hall and the Chesterfield Parkway East Pedestrian Bridge. 

Mr. Herring continued by explaining the details of the proposed FY2016 General Fund 
Budget. General Fund revenues are estimated to total $22,014,716 for FY2016. Revenues 
from sales tax and utility gross receipts taxes represent 32.3% and 33.4%, respectively, of 
the General Fund's total revenue. Intergovernmental revenues, including motor fuel taxes, 
motor vehicle sales taxes, cigarette taxes, road and bridge taxes, and other grant sources 
represent 20% of the City's total revenues. The remaining 14.3% is made up of licenses 

4 



and permits (7.3%), charges for services (0.7%), court receipts (4.8%) and other 
miscellaneous sources (1.5%). 

Projected FY2016 revenues, of $22,014,716, represent an increase of 0.9% from our 2015 
budget. Sales taxes are projected to grow 3% in 2015 and utility taxes are projected to 
increase by just 0.5%. We believe this growth is conservative based on historical trends 
and the current economic climate. Slow growth in utility taxes is primarily driven by 
decreases in phone utility tax as landlines are abandoned and no taxes are collected on 
cellular data plans. 

The General Fund Budget for FY2016, excluding operating transfers out, reflects total 
estimated expenditures of $19,955,994. This number is comprised of operating expenses 
and capital equipment purchases for the various departments of the City. Including net 
operating transfers, of $1,472,212, General Fund expenditures will total $21,428,206. 
"Operating transfers" include debt service payments for our City Hall and additional minor 
transfers. Based on the revenue and expenditure projections, General Fund - Fund 
Reserves will increase by $586,510 in FY2016. The proposed FY2016 Budget includes 
funding for no new positions, but will now fund an existing police officer position whose 
salary and benefits were previously paid for via a grant that no longer exists. 

The City's two largest areas of operation, Police and Public Services, comprise the majority 
of all operating expenditures, totaling a combined 82.1% of the proposed budget (excluding 
transfers out). The Police budget, at $9,262,556, represents 46.41% of the budget and the 
Public Services budget at $7,121,144, represents 35.68% of the budget. If, however, the 
total amount budgeted for the Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund, for FY2016, is added 
to the Public Services budget, the total amount budgeted in support of public infrastructure 
increases by $10,701,020, reflecting a total commitment of $17,822,164. Capital 
equipment purchases in the General Fund total $260,200 for the various departments of the 
City. 

Fund Reserves are projected to increase by $586,510, to $12,945,564, as of 12/31/2016. 
The City of Chesterfield remains fiscally strong and maintains General Fund - Fund 
Reserves of over 40% of the City's operating budget. This policy was put in place by the 
City Council to ensure the financial strength of the City. The 40% policy means that 
$8,571,282 must be set aside and not spent. 

Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion to reduce the budget for merit salary 
adjustments from 3.0% to 2.5% as recommended by the Finance & Administration 
Committee. The action will reduce the City's budgeted expenditures by $34,868 (General 
Fund - $28,947; Parks Sales Tax Fund - $5,225; and Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 
- $498). The motion was seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, a voice vote was taken 
and passed by a vote of 6-0. This change will be reflected in the budget proposed at the 
December 7 City Council meeting. 

Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion to recommend the approval of the FY2016 
Capital Improvement Fund Budget for presentation and approval at a public hearing and 

5 



subsequent City Council meeting on December 7, 2015, seconded by Councilmember 
Fults, passed by vote of 6-0. 

Councilmember Casey made a motion to recommend the approval of the FY2016 Parks 
Sales Tax Fund Budget for presentation and approval at a public hearing and subsequent 
City Council meeting on December 7, 2015, seconded by Councilmember Nations, passed 
by vote of 5-1, with Councilmember DeGroot voting against. 

Councilmember Casey made a motion to recommend the approval of the FY2016 General 
Fund Budget, with the amendment made for the merit raise pool, for presentation and 
approval at a public hearing and subsequent City Council meeting on December 7, 2015, 
seconded by Councilmember Grissom, passed by vote of 6-0. 

During the meeting the F&A Committee requested that the following items be periodically 
provided by Staff: 

A report of revenues/expenses for various Parks assets (pool, CVAC fields, etc.) 
A graphical representation of Parks/PW employment (temporary and full time) to 
provide a picture of the fluctuations and staffing needs during off seasons 
A monthly breakdown of overtime hours 

10. Adjournment 

There being no further business to discuss, Chairperson Flachsbart adjourned the meeting 
at 6:58 p.m. 

6 



ii=r9  City of 
%•■••Chesterfield 

RECORD OF PROCEEDING 

MEETING OF THE CITY COUNCIL 
OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 

AT 690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 

NOVEMBER 16, 2015 

The meeting was called to order at 7 p.m. 

Mayor Bob Nation led everyone in the Pledge of Allegiance and followed with a moment 
of silent prayer. 

A roll call was taken with the following results: 

PRESENT 
	

ABSENT 

Councilmember Dan Hurt Mayor Bob Nation 
Councilmember Barry Flachsbart 
Councilmember Bridget Nations 
Councilmember G. Elliot Grissom 
Councilmember Mike Casey 
Councilmember Bruce DeGroot 
Councilmember Connie Fults 

APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

The minutes of the October 19, 2015 City Council meeting were submitted for approval. 
Councilmember Grissom made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Nations, to 
approve the City Council minutes. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. 

1 



INTRODUCTORY REMARKS 

Mayor Nation presented a Proclamation to Ms. Renee Heney and Mr. Earl Barge, 
representing the Rockwood Drug Free Coalition, for raising awareness of the risks 
associated with marijuana use among young people and urging a vigorous/united effort to 
disseminate the facts regarding this on-going problem. 

Mayor Nation announced that the next meeting of City Council has been scheduled for 
Monday, December 7, at 7 p.m. 

COMMUNICATIONS AND PETITIONS 

Mr. Gene Koverman, 725 Judson Manor Drive, spoke about the Parkway band practicing 
at 6:30 a.m. and disturbing the neighborhood. Mayor Nation instructed Interim City 
Attorney Harold O'Rourke to review the ordinance pertaining to this matter. 
Councilmember Flachsbart also requested this topic be added to the next Public Health & 
Safety Committee agenda. 

Mr. Alan Politte, 14972 Manor Ridge, spoke in support of appointing Ms. Barbara 
McGuinness to the vacant Ward I Councilmember seat. 

Senator Jane Cunningham, 1602 Timberlake Manor Pkwy., offered her assistance in 
helping the City to follow administrative practices, and asked how the City plans to move 
forward. Councilmember Fults responded by suggesting it would be helpful to have an 
expert evaluate the City's policies and ordinances to be sure they are in line with state 
statute. 

APPOINTMENTS 

On October 7, 2015 Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion, seconded by 
Councilmember Hurt, to approve the appointment of Ms. Barbara McGuinness, 95 River 
Bend Drive, to fill the vacancy as Councilmember in Ward I, created by the recent 
passing of Councilmember Nancy Greenwood. Councilmember Casey then made a 
motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, to table this nomination. A roll call vote 
was taken to table the nomination with the following results: Ayes — Nations, Casey, 
Fults, Grissom and DeGroot. Nays — Hurt and Flachsbart. Whereupon Mayor Nation 
declared the motion to table approved. 

On October 19, 2015 Councilmember DeGroot made a motion, seconded by 
Councilmember Casey, to remove from the table the original motion made in support of 
the Mayor's nomination of Ms. Barbara McGuinness, as described above and that a vote 
on that original motion be scheduled for the November 16, 2015 City Council meeting. 
A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared 
passed. 

2 



A voice vote was taken to approve that original motion, re: the appointment of Ms. 
Barbara McGuinness, with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared 
passed. A special election will be scheduled for April, 2016 to fill the remaining one year 
of Councilmember Greenwood's term. 

SWEARING-IN CEREMONY 

Mayor Nation recognized the Honorable Richard K. Brunk, Jr., Municipal Judge. Judge 
Brunk then conducted the Swearing-In Ceremony for Councilmember Barbara 
McGuinness-Ward I. 

ROLL CALL  

A roll call was then re-taken, with the following results: 

PRESENT 	 ABSENT 

Councilmember Dan Hurt Mayor Bob Nation 
Councilmember Barry Flachsbart 
Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 
Councilmember Bridget Nations 
Councilmember G. Elliot Grissom 
Councilmember Mike Casey 
Councilmember Bruce DeGroot 
Councilmember Connie Fults 

COUNCIL COMMITTEE REPORTS 

Planning/Public Works Committee 

Councilmember Connie Fults, Chairperson of the Planning/Public Works Committee, 
reported that Bill No. 3059 (P.Z. 09-2015, Friendship Village of West County [15239, 
15249 and 15255 Olive Blvd.]) will be read for the first time under the "Legislation — 
Planning Commission" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Flachsbart made a motion, seconded by Councilmember Fults, to 
approve the proposal to fund the Emerald Ash Borer Strategy. A voice vote was taken 
with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was declared passed. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3060 (Boundary Adjustment Plat — 
Chesterfield Village, Lots A and B) is scheduled for both first and second reading 
approval under the "Legislation — Planning Commission" portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3061 (Lot Split — Long Road Crossing, Lot 
A) is scheduled for both first and second reading approval under the "Legislation — 
Planning Commission" portion of the agenda. 

3 



Councilmember Fults reported that Bill No. 3062 (Approves Installation of Fire 
Hydrants) is scheduled for both first and second reading approval under the "Legislation" 
portion of the agenda. 

Councilmember Fults announced that the next meeting of this Committee has been 
scheduled for Thursday, November 19, at 5:30 p.m. 

REPORT FROM THE CITY ADMINISTRATOR 

City Administrator Mike Herring reported that Absolute BBQ, located at 17407 
Chesterfield Airport Road, Suite C, has requested a new liquor license, to sell all kinds of 
liquor by the drink and Sunday sales. Mr. Herring reported that, per City policy, this 
application has been reviewed and is now recommended for approval by both the 
Planning/Public Services Division and Police Department. Councilmember Casey made 
a motion, seconded by Councilmember Nations, to approve issuance of a new liquor 
license to Absolute BBQ. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. 

Mr. Herring next reported that Parkway Fuels, Inc., located at 909 E. Chesterfield 
Parkway, has requested a new liquor license, to sell all kinds of liquor in original package 
and Sunday sales. Mr. Herring reported that, per City policy, this application has been 
reviewed and is now recommended for approval by both the Planning/Public Services 
Division and Police Department. Councilmember Grissom made a motion, seconded by 
Councilmember Nations, to approve issuance of a new liquor license to Parkway Fuels, 
Inc. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result and the motion was 
declared passed. 

OLD BUSINESS  

There was no old business. 

NEW BUSINESS  

There was no new business. 

LEGISLATION  

BILL NO. 3062 APPROVES THE INSTALLATION OF TWENTY-FIVE FIRE 
HYDRANTS IN THE ARBORS AT KEHRS MILL 
SUBDIVISION, THE BUR OAKS SUBDIVISION, AND THE 
SCHOETTLER GROVE SUBDIVISION WITHIN THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD (FIRST AND SECOND READINGS; 
DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES RECOMMENDS 
APPROVAL) 

4 



Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the first 
reading of Bill No. 3062. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3062 was read for the first time. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the 
second reading of Bill No. 3062. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3062 was read for the second time. 
A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3062 with the 
following results: Ayes — DeGroot, Casey, Fults, Flachsbart, Nations, Grissom and 
McGuinness. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3062 approved, 
passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2875. 

LEGISLATION — PLANNING COMMISSION 

BILL NO. 3059 AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN 
"NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT TO AN "R-4" RESIDENTIAL 
DISTRICT FOR A 2.13 ACRE TRACT OF LAND LOCATED ON 
THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF OLIVE BOULEVARD AND 
BRAEFIELD DRIVE (FIRST READING; PLANNING 
COMMISSION RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the first 
reading of Bill No. 3059. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3059 was read for the first time. 

BILL NO. 3060 PROVIDES FOR THE APPROVAL OF A BOUNDARY 
ADJUSTMENT PLAT FOR LOTS A AND B OF CHESTERFIELD 
VILLAGE FOR A 3.6 ACRE TRACT OF LAND ZONED "UC" 
URBAN CORE DISTRICT AND LOCATED SOUTHEAST OF 
THE INTERSECTION OF CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY WEST 
AND JUSTUS POST ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND 
READINGS; DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the first 
reading of Bill No. 3060. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3060 was read for the first time. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the 
second reading of Bill No. 3060. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3060 was read for the second time. 
A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3060 with the 
following results: Ayes — Nations, Flachsbart, DeGroot, Fults, McGuinness, Grissom and 
Casey. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3060 approved, 
passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2876. 

5 



BILL NO. 3061 PROVIDES FOR THE APPROVAL OF A LOT SPLIT FOR LONG 
ROAD CROSSING LOT A, FOR A 2.9 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
ZONED "PC" PLANNED COMMERCIAL DISTRICT LOCATED 
WEST OF LONG ROAD CROSSING DRIVE, NORTH OF 
CHESTERFIELD AIRPORT ROAD (FIRST AND SECOND 
READINGS; DEPARTMENT OF PUBLIC SERVICES 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the first 
reading of Bill No. 3061. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative result 
and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3061 was read for the first time. 

Councilmember Fults made a motion, seconded by Councilmember DeGroot, for the 
second reading of Bill No. 3061. A voice vote was taken with a unanimous affirmative 
result and the motion was declared passed. Bill No. 3061 was read for the second time. 
A roll call vote was taken for the passage and approval of Bill No. 3061 with the 
following results: Ayes — Flachsbart, DeGroot, Casey, McGuinness, Grissom, Fults and 
Nations. Nays — None. Whereupon Mayor Nation declared Bill No. 3061 approved, 
passed it and it became ORDINANCE NO. 2877. 

ADJOURNMENT 

There being no further business to discuss, Mayor Nation adjourned the meeting at 7:50 

P.m. 

Mayor Bob Nation 

ATTEST:  

Vickie J. Hass, City Clerk 

6 



UPCOMING MEETINGS/EVENTS 

Thursday, December 10 

Monday, December 14 

Opens Tuesday, December 15 at 8 a.m. 
Closes Tuesday, January 19 at 5 p.m. 

Friday, December 18 

Thursday, December 24 

Friday, December 25 

Friday, December 25 

Wednesday, December 30 

Friday, January 1, 2016 

Monday, January 4 

Planning & Public Works Committee (5:30pm) 

Planning Commission (7pm) 

April 5 Election Qualifying Period 

Holiday Awards Luncheon (11:30am) 

City Hall Closed — Christmas Eve (12noon) 

City Hall Closed — Christmas Day (All day) 

HAPPY BIRTHDAY TO PUBLIC SERVICES DIRECTOR 
AIMEE NASSIF! 

HAPPY BIRTHDAY TO COUNCILMEMBER HURT! 

City Hall Closed — New Year's Day 

Next City Council meeting (7pm) 



RECOMMENDATION — F&A COMMITTEE-OF-THE-WHOLE RE: RESOLUTION #418 — 
APPROVES ADOPTS THE PROPOSED FY2016 BUDGET  

At Monday's meeting, F&A Committee Chairperson Barry Flachsbart, in response to votes taken at the 
F&A Committee-of-the-Whole BUDGET WORKSHOP (November 16), will submit RESOLUTION 
#418 — APPROVES/ADOPTS THE PROPOSED FY2016 BUDGET, to City Council, for final 
approval. 

As noted previously, please forward any remaining questions to any member of the Management Team, 
or me, prior to Monday's meeting. 



RESOLUTION # 1/P 

A RESOLUTION ADOPTING THE BUDGET FOR THE CITY OF 
CHESTERIELD FOR THE YEAR BEGINNING ON JANUARY 1, 2016 AND 
ENDING ON DECEMBER 31, 2016 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield has adopted an ordinance providing for a 
fiscal year which begins on January 1 of each year and ends on December 31 of each 
year, and 

WHEREAS, the City of Chesterfield, by ordinance, has directed the City 
Administrator to prepare a proposed budget, and 

WHEREAS, the City has held a public hearing with regard to the adoption of the 
budget for the year beginning January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 2016, 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED THAT THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD adopts the attached budget as its budget for the fiscal year beginning 
January 1, 2016 and ending December 31, 2016. 

Passed and adopted this 7 th day of December 2015. 

Mayor 

Attest: 

City Clerk 



-_City of 
—Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

P 
General Fund 

2014 
r-  
ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	13,938,251 $ 	14,347,922 $ 	12,018,792 

REVENUES: 

Utility Taxes 7,429,472 7,324,740 7,361,681 

Sales Tax 6,796,849 6,903,284 7,110,383 

Intergovernmental 4,191,644 4,298,917 4,402,506 

Licenses and Permits 1,605,721 1,580,948 1,597,594 

Charges for Services 120,562 144,154 144,254 

Court Receipts 1,177,957 1,113,757 1,059,798 

Other Revenues 856,161 459,157 338,500 

TOTAL REVENUE 22,178,366 21,824,957 22,014,716 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 36,116,617 36,172,879 34,033,508 

EXPENDITURES 

Executive & Legislative 69,300 71,757 78,561 

Deptartment of Administration 

City Admin/Econ Dev/Cust Svc 734,550 751,615 775,517 

Finance and Courts 709,264 724,745 742,676 

Information Technology 450,774 625,082 633,294 

Central Services 1,625,561 1,287,530 1,299,127 

Police Department 8,504,751 9,061,101 9,239,171 

Director of Public Services 

Planning and Development 848,918 924,280 973,379 

Public Works 5,897,193 5,962,946 5,924,330 

Capital Items for All Departments 578,328 669,978 260,900 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 19,418,639 20,079,034 19,926,955 

Transfers To/From Other Funds (2,350,056) (4,075,053) (1,472,212) 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 14,347,922 $ 	12,018,792 $ 12,634,341 



City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

Parks Sales Tax Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 2,426,443 $ 	2,935,225 $ 2,762,105 

REVENUES: 

Sales Tax 6,977,481 7,154,839 7,369,485 

Intergovernmental 166,443 535,048 - 
Parks and Recreation 1,640,112 1,755,702 1,728,983 

Other Revenues 16,919 143,398 41,000 

TOTAL REVENUE 8,800,955 9,588,987 9,139,468 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 11,227,398 12,524,212 11,901,573 

EXPENDITURES 

Parks 4,911,016 5,595,979 5,883,401 

Capital Items 581,008 1,398,821 267,900 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 5,492,024 6,994,800 6,151,301 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS (2,800,149) (2,767,307) (2,923,357) 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 2,935,225 $ 	2,762,105 $ 2,826,915 



= City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

Capital Improvement Sales Tax Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 2,267,616 $ 	1,726,802 $ 	1,482,755 

REVENUES: 

Sales Tax 

Other Revenues 

5,932,325 

2,833,220 

6,082,573 

1,597,545 

6,265,050 

5,395,603 

TOTAL REVENUE 8,765,545 7,680,118 11,660,653 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 11,033,161 9,406,920 13,143,408 

EXPENDITURES 

Public Works 

Capital Items 
1,127,485 

6,199,743 

1,300,166 
6,852,707 

641,492 
10,059,030 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 7,327,228 8,152,873 10,700,522 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS (1,979,130) 228,708 (1,869,750) 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	1,726,802 $ 	1,482,755 $ 	573,136 



City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

Sewer Latei.al Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	693,629 $ 	686,425 	$ 	625,731 

REVENUES: 

Property Taxes 

Other Revenues 

429,717 

387 

446,906 	451,375 

500 	 500 

TOTAL REVENUE 430,104 447,406 	451,875 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 1,123,733 1,133,831 	1,077,606 

EXPENDITURES 
Public Works 387,139 450,000 	450,000 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 387,139 450,000 	450,000 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS (50,169) (58,100) 	(53,889) 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	686,425 $ 	625,731 	$ 	573,717 



City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - ,„ 

Police Forfeiture Fund - 
2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

'' PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 1,700,757 $ 	77,642 $ 	152,038 

REVENUES: 

Intergovernmental 152,906 102,956 - 

TOTAL REVENUE 152,906 102,956 - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 1,853,663 180,598 152,038 

EXPENDITURES 

Police 1,776,021 28,560 152,038 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 1,776,021 28,560 152,038 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS - - - 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	77,642 $ 	152,038 $ 	- 



=City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

Chesterfield Valley Special Allocation Fund  

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 

2014 

ACTUAL 

$ 	160,052 

2015 	 2016 

PROJECTED 	BUDGET 

$ 	132,438 	$ 	76,145 

REVENUES: 
Intergovernmental 

Other Revenues 

- 

3,836 

56,685 	 - 

15 	 - 

TOTAL REVENUE 3,836 15 	 - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 163,888 132,453 	76,145 

EXPENDITURES 

Public Works 31,720 56,308 	76,145 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 31,720 56,308 	76,145 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 270 - 	 - 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	132,438 $ 	76,145 	$ 	- 

This is money that was set-aside in prior years and has significant restrictions on its usage. The funds 
have primarily been used for wetland mitigation. 



2016 Annual Budget 
==City of 

Chesterfield 

. Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures and_ Expenditures 

0 	- 
Parks Construction Phase 11 20098 

- 
Fund 

2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	567,486 $ 	346,055 $ 	6,283 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 357 - - 

TOTAL REVENUE 357 - - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 567,843 346,055 6,283 

EXPENDITURES 

Parks 221,776 339,772 6,283 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 221,776 339,772 6,283 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS (12) - - 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	346,055 $ 	6,283 $ 	- 

These funds are related to parks phase II and are expected be fully spent by the end of FY2016. 



„City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

rc 
Parks 1998rebt Service Fund 

2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	476 $ 	498,465 $ 	(21,114) 

REVENUES: 

Property Tax 
Other Revenues 

517,358 
- 

43,466 2,500 
- 

TOTAL REVENUE 517,358 43,466 2,500 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 517,834 541,931 (18,614) 

EXPENDITURES 
Parks 893,369 898,321 - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 893,369 898,321 - 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 874,000 335,276 - 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	498,465 $ 	(21,114) (18,614) 

This fund collected a property tax to make debt service payments on debt that matured in 2016. 
The negative fund balance will be eliminated as delinquent property tax payments are collected 
over the next 10 years. 



,City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures -  

R&S Series Bonds Debt Service Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	- 	$ - $ 	2 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 

Bond Proceeds 

Premium on issuance 

- 

- 

- 

- 
7,340,000 

224,704 

- 
- 
- 

TOTAL REVENUE 7,564,704 - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS - 7,564,704 2 

EXPENDITURES 
Public Works 2,013,593 9,505,994 1,869,750 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,013,593 	. 9,505,994 1,869,750 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 2,013,593 1,941,292 1,869,750 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	- 	$ 2 $ 	2 



2016 Annual Budget 
-=City of 

Chesterfield 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

City Hall Bonds 2004 Debt Service Fund 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 

2014 

ACTUAL 

$ 

2015 

PROJECTED 

1 	$ 	2 

2016 

BUDGET 

$ 	7 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 	 7 5 - 

TOTAL REVENUE 	 7 5 - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 	 8 7 7 

EXPENDITURES 

Debt Service 	 1,491,498 1,521,438 1,526,101 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 	 1,491,498 1,521,438 1,526,101 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 	1,491,492 1,521,438 1,526,101 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 	 $ 	2 	$ 7 $ 	7 



2016 Annual Budget 
,City of 

Chesterfield 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

2013 Parks Bonds Debt Service Fund  

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 

2014 

ACTUAL 

$ 	20 

2015 

PROJECTED 

$ 	27 

2016 

BUDGET 

$ 	32 

REVENUES:  

Other Revenues 	 7 5 5 

TOTAL REVENUE 	 7 5 • 	5 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 	 27 32 37 

EXPENDITURES 

Parks 	 1,849,816 1,908,826 1,969,476 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 	 1,849,816 1,908,826 1,969,476 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 	1,849,816 1,908,826 1,969,476 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 	 $ 	27 	$ 32 $ 	37 



=City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combied Statement 
Revenues and Expenditures 

2008 Parks Bonds 

of Budgeted 
- 	 2014 	 2015 

ebt Service Fund 	ACTUAL 	PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 	 $ 	1,864 	$ 	1,866 	$ 	1,866 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 	 2 	 - 	 - 

TOTAL REVENUE 	 2 	 - 	 - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 	 1,866 	 1,866 	1,866 

EXPENDITURES 
Parks 	 374,850 	384,531 	376,531 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 	 374,850 	384,531 	376,531 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 	374,850 	384,531 	376,531 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 	 $ 	1,866 	$ 	1,866 	$ 	1,866 



2016 Annual Budget 
-=City of 

Chesterfield 

w Com  bned Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

2009A Parks Bonds Debt Service Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	2 $ 59 $ 	- 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 58 - - 

TOTAL REVENUE 58 - - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 60 59 - 

EXPENDITURES 
Parks 
Payments to bond escrow agent 

40,828 
2,805,828 

- 
- 

- 
- 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 2,846,656 - -  

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 2,846,655 (59) - 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	59 $ - $ 	- 

Refunded with 2014 COPS during FY2014. 



,City of 
Chesterfield 2016 Annual Budget 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

2009B Parks Bonds7Debt Service Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL' PROJECTED 

2015 2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 $ 	1 $ 	123 	$ 	- 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 122 - 	 - 
Intergovernmental 89,211 - 	 - 

TOTAL REVENUE 89,333 - 	 - 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 89,334 123 	 - 

EXPENDITURES 
Parks 172,796 - 	 - 
Payments to bond escrow agent 5,867,797 - 	 - 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 6,040,593 - 	 - 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 5,951,382 (123) 	 - 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 $ 	123 - 	$ 	- 

Refunded with 2014 COPS during FY2014. 



2016 Annual Budget 
_City of 
Chesterfield 

Combined Statement of Budgeted 
Revenues and Expenditures - 

2014 Parks Bonds Debt Service Fund 
2014 

ACTUAL 	1 

2015 

PROJECTED 

2016 

BUDGET 

FUND BALANCE, JANUARY 1 	 - 	$ 	756 	$ 	939 

REVENUES: 

Other Revenues 	 4 	 1 	 1 

Bond Proceeds 	 8,600,000 	 - 	 - 

Premium on issuance 	 236,605 	 - 	 - 

TOTAL REVENUE 	 8,836,609 	 1 	 1 

TOTAL AVAILABLE FUNDS 	 8,836,609 	 757 	 940 

EXPENDITURES 
Parks 	 613,311 	573,950 	577,350 

TOTAL EXPENDITURES 	 613,311 	573,950 	577,350 

TRANSFERS TO/FROM OTHER FUNDS 	(8,222,542) 	574,132 	577,350 

FUND BALANCE, DECEMBER 31 	 $ 	756 	$ 	939 	$ 	940 

Refunded 2009 A & B COPS during FY2014. 



RECOMMENDATIONS - PLANNING/PUBLIC WORKS COMMITTEE 

As detailed in the enclosed MINUTES, prepared by Mike Geisel, Dir. of Public Services, the 
Planning/Public Works Committee met on Thursday, November 19. 

The following items will be discussed at Monday's meeting and are forwarded for your 
review/consideration: 

IIA. River Valley Drive Closure Project (VOICE VOTE) 

Bill No. 3059 - P.Z. 09-2015, Friendship Village of West County (15239, 15249 and 15255 
Olive Blvd.) (SECOND READING) 

Next meeting - Thursday, December 10, 2015 (5:30pm) 

As always, if you have any questions or would additional information, regarding any of the items listed 
above, please contact Chairperson Connie Fults, any other member of this Committee, Mr. Geisel or 
me, PRIOR to Monday's Council meeting. 



MEMORANDUM 

TO: 	Michael G. Herring, City Administrator 

FROM: 	Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services 

SUBJECT: 	Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 
Thursday, November 19, 2015 

A meeting of the Planning and Public Works Committee of the Chesterfield City Council was held 
on Thursday, November 19, 2015 in Conference Room 101. 

In attendance were: Chair Connie Fults (Ward IV), Councilmember Barbara McGuinness 
(Ward I), Councilmember Bridget Nations (Ward II) and Councilmember Dan Hurt (Ward III). 

Also in attendance were: Mayor Bob Nation; Councilmember Barry Flachsbart (Ward I); 
Councilmember Bruce DeGroot (Ward IV); Harry O'Rourke, Interim City Attorney; Allison Harris, 
Planning Commission Member; Mike Geisel, Director of Public Services; Jim Eckrich, Public 
Works Director/City Engineer; Aimee Nassif, Planning & Development Services Director; and 
Kathy Juergens, Recording Secretary. 

lit 
 

12 e s/sc'ei,Y,f'‘,2) 4 .7,420,04/.:5- /14 7-6,- ('  

The meeting was called to order at 5:30 p.m. 

I. APPROVAL OF MEETING SUMMARY 

A. Approval of the November 5, 2015 Committee Meeting Summary 

Councilmember Nations made a motion to approve the Meeting Summary of 
November 5, 2015. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Hurt and passed by a voice 
vote of 3-0 (Councilmember McGuinness abstained.) 

II. OLD BUSINESS 

'IP A. River Valley Drive Closure Project 

STAFF REPORT 
Jim Eckrich, Public Works Director/City Engineer, reported that in May of 2015, City Council 
directed Staff to prepare plans and provide a cost estimate for the closure of River Valley Drive 
just south of the Chesterfield City limits in response to the potential development of the Howard 
Bend area within the City of Maryland Heights. 

Site Plan  
Mr. Eckrich presented a site plan depicting a 44 foot radius cul-de-sac with a colored concrete 
island in the middle. A gate is proposed northwest of the cul-de-sac to provide access for 
emergency services and utilities. Pedestrian and bicycle traffic will be permitted through a paved 
path around the west side of the gate. 



Initially Staff believed a retaining wall would be necessary, but it was possible to design a 3:1 
slope to avoid a retaining wall. A rock drainage swale is proposed immediately adjacent to the 
pavement to direct water around the cul-de-sac and into the creek. 

Design Estimate 
The final design estimate for this project is $155,000 which includes- a 10% contingency. 

Right-of-Way Dedication 
City Staff has been told that the affected property owners at 178 River Valley Drive and 180 River 
Valley Drive will donate the land necessary for the new right of way and temporary slope and 
construction licenses. 

Recommendation 
If directed by City Council, Staff will proceed with easement acquisition and a bid package with a 
possible bid opening in spring 2016. 

Councilmember McGuinness made a motion to initiate the River Valley Drive closure 
project, as well as funding, and to forward to City Council with a recommendation to 
approve. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Nations. 

Discussion 
In response to a resident's question, Mr. Eckrich stated the fence near the culvert would be similar 
to the fence that was recently erected on Ladue Road by the creek. 

Maryland Heights Valley Update 
Chair Fults requested an update on the Maryland Heights Valley project. Mr. Eckrich reported 
that Maryland Heights has updated its Comprehensive Plan and has approved zoning and a 
preliminary development plan. The developer is currently working to obtain final plan approval. 

Maryland Heights performed a traffic impact study on which Staff has commented. However, to 
date, there has been no response from Maryland Heights. 

Construction Timeframe 
Maryland Heights' construction timeframe is unknown. It is anticipated that construction will begin 
some time in 2016. If the River Valley Drive closure project is bid in the spring of 2016, Staff 
estimates that River Valley Drive can be closed by the fall of 2016. 

Impact to Hog Hollow Road 
The closure of River Valley Drive will adversely impact Hog Hollow Road. If River Valley Drive is 
closed, the average daily vehicles could increase by 184%. Staff is continuing to work on 
solutions to the Hog Hollow concerns and will provide recommendations when they become 
available. There was further discussion regarding possible improvements to Hog Hollow Road. 

The above motion passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

Discussion after the Motion 
Mr. Geisel confirmed that this item will be on the agenda for the December 7 Council meeting to 
consider the initiation of the project and budget transfer. Council will also consider the final bids 
in 2016. He also confirmed that this project was not previously included in the Capital Projects 
budget. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 2 
November 19, 2015 



There was further discussion on the timeframe for initiating Hog Hollow Road improvements 
regardless of whether River Valley Drive is closed or not. Staff's original recommendation was to 
consider the closure or vacation of both River Valley Drive and Hog Hollow Road. However, the 
Planning & Public Works Committee decided to keep Hog Hollow Road open and proceed with 
the closure of River Valley Drive due to the impending Maryland Heights' development project. 
The closure of River Valley may accelerate efforts between St. Louis County and Maryland 
Heights to develop better long term transportation alternatives. 

[Please see the attached report prepared by Jim Eckrich, Public Works Director/City 
Engineer, for additional information on the River Valley Drive closure project.] 

B. Snow Removal Reimbursements for Private Streets 

STAFF REPORT 
Prior to Council's consideration of potentially amending the snow removal reimbursement 
program to include private, gated streets, it was recommended that Staff research the mileage 
and potential additional costs of reimbursing private-gated subdivisions for snow removal. Jim 
Eckrich, Public Works Director/City Engineer, presented the following information: 

• The City reimburses 45 subdivisions with 25.3 miles of non-gated private streets at an 
annual reimbursement of approximately $162,000. 

• There are 21 gated subdivisions with 14.9 miles of private streets. If these 
subdivisions were reimbursed at the current rate, there would be an additional 
estimated reimbursement of $101,000. 

• There are an additional 35 non-gated subdivisions with 12.7 miles of private streets 
that are eligible for reimbursement, but have not previously requested reimbursement. 
If these subdivisions requested reimbursement under the current program, there would 
be an additional estimated cost of $86,000. 

• There are 12.1 miles of non-residential private streets that are not eligible under the 
current policy. However, these streets are "private" streets and it would be difficult to 
make a significant legal distinction based upon public health and safety concerns. If 
eligibility modifications are made to the current policy, then non-residential private 
streets should also be considered. 

Discussion 
Councilmember Hurt questioned why a subdivision might not participate in the program. Mr. 
Eckrich suggested some subdivisions may not be aware of the program or perhaps they do not 
participate due to the small size of their subdivision. It was also suggested that they may not 
even plow their streets. 

Councilmember Hurt recommended providing snow removal reimbursement for all private streets, 
whether gated or not, as he feels this is a more equitable approach for all the City's residents. 
Interim City Attorney, Harry O'Rourke emphasized that the question is not whether the City can 
do this, but whether is this permissible under State Constitutional provisions. Over the years, 
three different City Attorneys have reviewed this matter a number of times, and each time, the 
decision has been that adopting such a policy would violate the State's prohibition against the use 
of public funds for private purposes. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 3 
November 19, 2015 



Councilmember McGuinness pointed out that the constitutional provision includes the phrase 
"unless it serves a public purpose." Mr. O'Rourke stated that court opinions consider whether the 
benefit to the private interest is incidental or primary. With respect to snow removal 
reimbursement for private streets, it is his opinion that such a policy would not likely pass 
constitutional muster. 

Councilmember Flachsbart stated that since many of the City's private, gated streets are open to 
the general public and utilized by both emergency vehicles and the public, snow plowing could be 
considered an incidental benefit to the private parties. He then suggested a letter be drafted to 
the Missouri Attorney General requesting an opinion based on these facts. 

Further discussion ensued regarding the difference between a primary benefit and an incidental 
benefit. Mr. Geisel pointed out that if the benefit is defined as "allowing emergency access and 
general service access", then it would be difficult to differentiate between residential and non-
residential private streets. 

It was noted that the City Attorney's opinion addressed gated subdivisions which raised the 
question as to how that differs from private streets in general. Mr. Geisel stated that previous City 
Attorney opinions differentiated between gated and non-gated private streets in that the general 
public has full and unfettered access to non-gated private streets while access to gated 
subdivisions is restricted. 

If the City were to establish a uniform snow plowing policy which also encouraged gated 
communities to plow their streets, Chair Fults questioned whether the public interest would then 
outweigh the private interest. Mr. O'Rourke pointed out that the City is not actually plowing the 
streets but is only providing partial reimbursement for the plowing. Even though the City may 
indicate its desire for uniformly clear streets for emergency vehicles and public service access, 
the City would not actually be taking action to pursue that end as the City only provides a monetary 
reimbursement and leaves it up to the discretion of the subdivisions as to whether or not to clear 
the streets. The City can state that they are trying to encourage snow plowing, but it is ultimately 
the judge's decision based on his interpretation. When examining an issue, judges look at how 
previous case laws have interpreted the Constitutional provision and try to provide an analysis to 
the current situation. There is no case exactly on point regarding this issue, but there are cases 
that interpret the Constitutional provision in ways that we can analogize. So that is the challenge 
— whether the public benefit is a primary or an incidental benefit. Mr. O'Rourke stated that he is 
of the opinion that the City would not have a strong case. He also noted that an Attorney General's 
opinion is a lawyer's opinion and is not binding. Attorney General opinions are helpful and provide 
guidance, but they are not determinant of what the law is. 

Councilmember McGuiness requested a list of gated and non-gated subdivisions throughout the 
City. She also stated that she has opinions from seven Attorney Generals on this issue and 
volunteered to share this information with the Committee via email. 

Councilmember McGuiness then referred to the term "public purpose" noting that this this could 
be considered a public purpose as emergency services need to gain access to gated subdivisions. 
Mr. O'Rourke pointed that if the public purpose being pursued is uniformly clear streets in snowy 
conditions for first responders to have unfettered and complete access, the argument could be 
raised as to whether the City is taking actions to pursue that purpose. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 4 
November 19, 2015 



Mr. Geisel then explained that the reimbursement program only provides a partial reimbursement 
and not a 100% reimbursement. The formula is based on the length of street and the number of 
household units. The current rate is $4,500/mile or $40 a unit. 

Councilmember Hurt made a motion directing Staff to seek an opinion from the Missouri 
State Attorney General regarding reimbursing private, gated subdivisions for a portion of 
snow removal expenditures. The motion was seconded by Councilmember Nations.  

Discussion on the motion 
It was decided that Mr. O'Rourke and Mr. Geisel will draft the request to the Attorney General and 
that the Committee will have the opportunity to review the request before it is sent. 

Discussion ensued regarding increasing the current allocation of $162,000 if gated subdivisions 
are included in the program. The current allocation is an artificial cap regardless of the number 
of subdivisions that participate. Individual reimbursements will decrease as more subdivisions 
participate in the program unless additional funds are added. 

The above motion was passed by a voice vote of 4-0. 

Mr. Geisel summarized by stating that Staff will provide a list of gated communities, draft a letter 
to the Missouri Attorney General to seek an opinion, and noted there will be no policy 
modifications at this time. 

III. NEW BUSINESS 

Councilmember McGuinness informed the Committee that as part of the closure of River Valley 
Drive, the River Valley Homeowners Association plans to honor the late Councilmember 
Greenwood for her support in their effort to close the street and they are currently discussing 
different options. 

In light of Councilmember Greenwood's contributions to the City as a whole, she suggested that 
Council consider renaming Stemme Drive to Nancy Greenwood Drive. Mr. Mike Geisel, Director 
of Public Services, stated there is a defined process for renaming streets to which Ms. Aimee  
Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director, explained the process. Councilmember 
Nations pointed out the street is already named for the Stemme family and felt it should not be 
renamed. She also noted that there is a specific location at City Hall to memorialize 
Councilmembers, volunteers and employees who have passed while in service to the City. 

IV. OTHER 

Ms. Aimee Nassif, Planning and Development Services Director, presented updates on the 
following projects: 

WARD I: PROJECT UPDATE 
• There is a proposal for new homes off of Olive Boulevard between Glenfield Ridge 

Court and Stablestone Drive. 
• Zoning map amendment for 3 parcels — zoning to R-2 district. Applicant is Fischer & 

Frichtel. 
• Zoning map amendment for Monsanto Chesterfield Campus to "UC" District. Public 

Hearing held August 10, 2015. Several items still under review with Staff. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 5 
November 19, 2015 



WARD II: PROJECT UPDATE 
• Kraus Farm Center amended SDCP and ASDSP — 149,669 sq. ft. 4-story office 

building. Under review by Staff. 
• The Grove — 96-bed assisted living development. SDP under review with Staff. 
• Watermark Residential. Meetings underway with applicants for new multi-family 

development. Use already permitted under existing zoning. 

WARD IV: PROJECT UPDATE 
• New Brew Hub located at 806 Spirit of St. Louis Boulevard. 
• Kemp Auto Museum and Johnny Y properties — both in for Ordinance amendments to 

add uses. 

OTHER PROJECTS UNDER REVIEW 
• Barat Academy site plan 
• Long Road Crossing (Ameren Substation) 
• Bur Oaks improvement plans 
• Courtyard by Marriot improvement plans 
• Edison Express improvement plans 
• St. Luke's improvement plans 
• Holiday Inn Express 
• Telecommunication siting permits 
• Highland on Conway 
• Brattle Hill 
• Bonhomme Presbyterian Church 
• Chesterfield Airport Service-17909 Chesterfield Airport Road 
• Regions Bank amended lighting plan 
• Autozone SDCP and SDSP 
• Arbors at Kehrs Mill 

V. 	ADJOURNMENT 

The meeting adjourned at 6:31 p.m. 

Planning & Public Works Committee Meeting Summary 	 6 
November 19, 2015 



DATE: 	November 9, 2015 

TO: 	Michael G. Herring 
City Administrator 

FROM: 	James A. Eckrich, P.E. 
Public Works Directorv/ City Engineer 

RE: 	River Valley Drive Closure 

As directed by City Council, in May of 2015 Public Services Staff provided a report 
detailing the impacts of the closure and / or vacation of River Valley Drive and Hog 
Hollow Road. This report was generated in response to the potential development of 
the Howard Bend area within the City of Maryland Heights. At that time City Council 
directed City Staff to prepare plans and a detailed cost estimate for the closure of 
River Valley Drive. As you may recall, the City Attorney reviewed this matter and 
advised that a closure could be effected so long as the closure was constructed in 
conformance with City road standards and the public impacts were thoroughly 
considered. 

Plans for the closure of River Valley Drive, as well as a detailed cost estimate, have 
been completed and are attached, along with a memorandum from Civil Engineer 
Chris Krueger. The plans depict a cul-de-sac with a 44 foot (City standard) pavement 
radius comprised of concrete, with a colored concrete island in the middle. A gate is 
proposed to be constructed northwest of the cul-de-sac, which would provide for 
access by emergency services and area utilities. Ultimately, we were able to develop a 
cul-de-sac design that avoids the anticipated construction of a retaining wall to 
support the steep slopes immediately east of the proposed cul-de-sac. This is 
important, not only to reduce the initial costs, but to reduce future maintenance 
obligations and liabilities. A rock drainage swale is proposed immediately adjacent to 
the pavement, and the adjacent ground outside the swale will be re-graded at a 3:1 
slope. The City has been assured that both affected property owners (178 River 
Valley Drive and 180 River Valley Drive) will donate the land necessary for the new 
Right of Way (ROW) and the Temporary Slope and Construction Licenses (TSCL). The 
ROW Dedication documents and TSCLs are attached.eThe final.estimate for thiS 

(protect, including a ten percent 6ontingeln4,II'S155,000i 

Since the time City Council last considered this matter, the City of Maryland Heights 
has moved forward with the development of the Maryland Heights Valley. Maryland 
Heights updated its Comprehensive Plan in April, changing from a preference of office 
/ light industrial in the Maryland Heights Valley to single family, multi-family, mixed 
use, and entertainment uses. Then, in October the Maryland Heights City Council 
approved a Preliminary Development Plan and Rezoning to allow the development of 



River Valley Drive Closure 
November 9, 2015 
Page 2 

the Farms and Maryland Park (Farms). The Farms is a mixed use development 
containing 569 single family residential units, 320 multi-family residential units, 
97,800 square feet of commercial, and 48,600 square feet of office / warehouse 
space. At this time the developer is worked to obtain approval of the Final 
Development Plan. We do not have an anticipated timeframe for the construction of 
this development. Nor do we have definitive plans as to what off-site traffic 
improvements will be required of the developer 

Prior to approval of the Preliminary Development Plan by the City of Maryland 
Heights, the developer hired the Lochmueller Group to create a Traffic Impact Study 
(TIS) for the Farms. The TIS attempted to address the concerns of the City of 
Chesterfield by showing how the intersection of River Valley Drive and Waterworks 
Road could be reconfigured to discourage traffic from the Farms from using River 
Valley Drive to access Olive Boulevard. This reconfiguration is shown below: 

Figure 1: Reconfiguration of River Valley Drive at Waterworks Road 

The revised intersection would physically restrict traffic from the Farms from directly 
accessing the Chesterfield portion of River Valley Drive. However, I question the 
purpose of constructing an intersection in this manner, and fail to comprehend the 
benefits to either Maryland Heights or Chesterfield of such an intersection, The City 
of Chesterfield sent a letter to Maryland Heights on September 3, 2015 questioning a 
number of items in the TIS. We have yet to receive a response to that letter. 
Additionally, as referenced above, the City is still unclear to what off-site traffic 
improvements are required by the developer. 

As discussed by the Planning and Public Works Committee, the development in 
Maryland Heights, as well as the proposed closure of River Valley Drive will adversely 
impact Hog Hollow Road. The Planning and Public Works Committee acknowledged 
these concerns and recommended that Staff identify, consider and propose specific 



River Valley Drive Closure 
November 9, 2015 
Page 3 

improvements for Hog Hollow should the proposed closure and development come to 
fruition. As detailed in the previously referenced report, average daily traffic (ADT) on 
Hog Hollow Road is expected to increase by 1,940 vehicles per day without the 
closure of River Valley Drive. If River Valley Drive is closed, that could increase to 
3,240 vehicles. Given that the current ADT on Hog Hollow is 1,758 vehicles per day, 
we are talking about a potential daily traffic increase of 184%, on a roadway with 
substandard slope, horizontal curvature, and drainage. Department of Public 
Services Staff continues to work on solutions to the Hog Hollow concerns and will 
forward same when they become available. 

Action Recommended 

request and recommend 'that this I-hatterLb:6 'forwarded the Planning 
Works for ocinsideratioh,and direction for 15iOjeetit-iitIation a§Veltas fundink:i Should 
PPW determine it is appropriate to pursue the closure of River Valley Drive, the matter 
should be forwarded to City Council. Should Council vote to approve the closure, City 
Staff will create specifications and a bid package with an intent to bid this project in the 
spring of 2016. 91,140-1)ici4 ;-are apprOvedl and the 
transfer of_the necessary fundinfrom General Rind Find Re-serVeS:A 

Cc: Michael 0. Geisel, Director of Public Services 

//7101 5-- 



Memorandum 
Department of Public Services 

TO: 	Jim Eckrich, Public Works Director/City Engineer 

FROM: 	Chris Krueger, Civil Engineer 

DATE: 	November 4, 2015 

RE: 	River Valley Drive Closure Project 

As requested, a detailed design site plan, cost estimate and land acquisition 
documents for the closure of River Valley Drive have been completed and are 
attached to this memorandum. The design consists of a manual metal gate restricting 
vehicular traffic from utilizing River Valley Drive, with the exception of emergency 
services and utilities. Pedestrian and bicycle traffic will be permitted through a paved 
path around the west side of the gate. A 44 foot radius cul-de-sac is proposed to be 
incorporated into River Valley Drive southwest of the existing culvert. Utilities were 
contacted and responded with no major conflicts with the proposed improvements. 

The Right-of-Way Dedication and Temporary Slope Construction Licenses (TSCL) 
have been prepared. These impact a portion of two properties west of River Valley 
Drive; 178 and 180 River Valley Drive. The Right-of-Way Dedication includes the cul- 
de-sac pavement outside of the limits of the existing River Valley Drive Right-of-Way 
plus ten feet. The Temporary Slope Construction Licenses allow for grading at a three 
to one slope adjacent to the drainage ditch. 

The design estimate is $155,000 which includes a contingency of $14,100. 
Construction drawings and project specifications will be completed should City 
Council decide to move forward with this project. If there are no problems securing 
the Right-of-Way or TSCLs, this project could commence in spring of 2016. 

1 



River Valley Drive Closure Cost Estimate 

Project # 2015-PW-14 
	

November 4, 2015 

Item # 	Description 

General Items 

Unit 	Quantity Unit Price Extended Price 

1 Clearing and Grubbing LS 1 $15,000.00 $15,000.00 

2 Mobilization LS 1 $10,000.00 $10,000.00 

3 Traffic Control LS 1 $2,000.00 $2,000.00 

4 Erosion & Sediment Control LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000,00 

5 Restoration SY 350 $10.00 $3,500.00 

6 Tree Protection LS 1 $1,000.00 $1,000.00 

Cul-de-Sac Construction 

7 Subgrade Fill CY 561 $35.00 $19,635.00 

8 Geotextile Fabric SY 470 $4.00 $1,880.00 

9 4" Rock Base SY 470 $8.00 $3,760.00 

10 Concrete Pavement (7" Non-Reinforced) SY 470 $40.00 $18,800.00 

11 Integral Curb (6" Height) LF 100 $15.00 $1,500.00 

12 Colored Concrete Pavement (5" Non-Reinforced) SY 133 $50.00 $6,650.00 

13 Rip-Rap Rock ditch IF 240 $24.00 $5,760.00 

Street Reconstruction 

14 Removal of Pavement SY 480 $28.00 $13,440.00 

15 Geotextile Fabric SY 480 $4.00 $1,920.00 

16 4" Rock Base SY 480 $8.00 $3,840.00 

17 Concrete Pavement (7" Non-Reinforced) SY 480 $40.00 $19,200.00 

18 Permanent Yellow Pavement Striping, Paint LF 180 $1.25 $225.00 

19 Permanent White Pavement Striping, Paint LF 180 $1.25 $225.00 

Street Closure 

20 Gate with installation EA 1 $3,000.00 $3,000.00 

21 Knox Box and Lock EA 1 $500.00 $500.00 

22 Additional Asphalt Pavement around Gate SY 8 $80.00 $640.00 

23 Pedestrian Fence LF 40 $155.00 $6,200.00 

24 Road Closed Permanent Signage EA 3 $400.00 $1,200.00 

Sub Total 	$140,875.00 

10% Contingency 	$14,087.50 

Total Estimate 	$154,962.50 



N/F 
ALL 515000 LOT OWNERS f.I1 

REND ESTATES ADDITIONS 1 	6 
160530 / 97 

B 	40 0 

INSTALL 
DEAD ENL6SIGN 014-1) 

(SUNECT TO APPROVAL BY 
-/ARVIAND HEIGHTS) 

•••••• 
Pl. Of COMMON LANDS Of 

RIVER BEND ESTATES AT ADDITION 

. COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
\ RECORDED IN BK. 16463. PG 1857 

iliEE PROTECTION 
FIRM 

	•PRGPOSED 
TEMPORARY CONSI3LCTION 

WITH 

6.7 cum 

DO NOT DISTURB 
COSTING ASPHALT 

PAVEMENT V 

CULVERT 
PEDESTRAN 

FENCING 

7' PEG PAVEMENT 

N/F 
RHO & TO ; 
160570197 

17814 / _441 

1,16DMS1 
• 

PT. 	
OF LANDS OF 

i 	/01 4 57 
.5  

STUDS JR 

N/F 
SAMUEL E. AND ANGELA P. JONES 

LOT 76 
160530212 

CONSTRUERON 
UNITS 

c6wENANISOON1101O•S, AND RES1RiC11098/ 	• 
RECORDED NI MC 14150 PC. 415 

En= 
L_EIUT 

pROPOSHI 

a HOMO COMA 

fliCeOSIO COMM 

ER Nowa v.. vol Ftv-o.0 MU. 

FTOPOSED Mt SIM 

own HOP= /ELAM SIM 

0:10RACOS DOSING kiPtiALT 
PAVEMENT 

7. 

• \ 

1 ":25' 
OftekrOuS 

PRELIMINARY SITE PLAN 
NOVEMBER 4, 2015 sxce 

PROPOSED 
SITE PLAN 

NST0L1 DEAD EAU SIGN IWTH 
ARROW AT RIVER VALLEY .  GONE 
AND MODECREST DONE" 

C3 85—' 



DOCUMENT TYPE: 

DATE OF DOCUMENT: 

GRANTOR 

GRANTEE 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 

RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION 

DUENKE BURTON W ET AL TRUSTEES 
PO BOX 12878 
ST. LOUIS, MO 63141 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 
690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY W 
CHESTEFIELD, MO 63017 

178 RIVER VALLEY DR 
CHESTERFIELD, MO 63017 

COUNTY LOCATOR # 

CITY/MUNICIPALITY 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

16Q530221 

CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

PART OF THE COMMON LAND OF RIVER 
BEND ESTATES FIRST ADDITION PER 
PLAT BOOK 103 ON PAGES 82 AND 83, 
BEING PART OF US SURVEY 387, 
TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, RANGE 5 EAST OF 
THE FIFTH PRINCIPLE MERIDIAN, ST. 
LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 



RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION 

THIS INDENTURE made and entered into this 	day of 
	 , 20 	, between Duenke Burton W Et Al Trustees, of the 
County of St. Louis, State of Missouri, Grantor(s) and the City of Chesterfield, 690 
Chesterfield Parkway W, Chesterfield, MO 63017, their successors and assigns 
parties, Grantee. 

WITNESSETH: that the Grantor(s), for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar 
and No/100 ($1.00) and other valuable considerations paid by the Grantee, the receipt 
of which is hereby acknowledged, does by these presents, Grant, Bargain and Sell, 
Convey and Confirm unto the Grantee, the following described premises, for road 
purposes and public use forever situated in the City of Chesterfield, County of St. Louis 
and State of Missouri, to wit: all the real estate indicated by the cross hatched 

on Exhibit "A" and as described in Exhibit "B" both of which are 
attached hereto. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, together with all rights and appurtenances to the 
same belonging, unto the Grantee, and to its assigns and successors forever. 

A Temporary Slope Construction License for the purpose of making cuts, fills, and 
sloping embankment, etc. if any, providing working room and implementing any and all 
other construction items over the real estate indicated by //////////////// on the attached 
exhibit "A" and as described in Exhibit "C" until such time as the River Valley Closure 
Project #2015-PW-14 may be completed and accepted by the City of Chesterfield. Upon 
the granting or denial of acceptance by the City of Chesterfield or its assigns this 
License shall terminate. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above named Grantor(s) has(ve) executed these presents the 
day and year first written above. 

By: 
Signature(s) Duenke Burton W Et Al Trustees 

Print Name(s) /Title 

Address 

Telephone 

1,;,W,W,Yg.::ks?WN 



INDIVIDUAL NOTARY 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF SAINT LOUIS 

On this 	day of 	 , 20_ before me personally appeared 

	 to me known to be the person(s) described in and who 
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the same as his/her 

free act and deed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 
seat in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 	  



60' 0 

LEGEND  

CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND 

	 EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY 

	 EXISTING LOT LINE 

CURVE RADIUS LENGTH 1 CHORD LENGTH CHORD BEARING 

Cl 54.00' 88.02' I 	78.60' S80.38'421 

— PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY 
50' 50 EASEMENT AWARDED TO ST. 

	 PROPOSED T.S.C.E. LOUIS COUNTY WATER COMPANY 
RECORDED IN DB. 5964, PG 123 

P.O.B. T.S.C.L. 	1 

N80'38'42"W 

27.02' 

P.O.C. 	
COC'kC'() 	\S‘j\\\° 

Np  

\314Pc 
/ 0.021 AC.± 

TSCL=2544 S.F.± / 0.058 AC.± PT. OF COMMON LANDS OF 

\OS PR ROW=921 S.F.± 

S80.  C 381:1, 	

.• 

cL73% 	
ADDITION 

RIVER BEND ESTATES 1ST 

63,22 

tip 

LINE BEARING LENGTH 

L1 N48.01'31"E 27.06' 

L2 N76. 30'581 24.23' 

L3 S84'55'301 61.01' 

L4 S4237'11"E 38.92' 

SO4°41'25"W COVENANTS, CONDITIONS 

11.15' 	
AND RESTRICTIONS 

RECORDED IN BK. 16463, 

PG. 1857 

N/F 

ALL RECORD LOT OWNERS 
OF RIVER BEND ESTATES 

ADDITIONS 1-6  

160530221 

N/F 

RBB 	TC 

160530197 

17814 / 1732 

PT. OF LOT 4 OF 

SUBDIVISION OF LANDS OF 
JACOB STUOT JR. 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS 

AND RESTRICTIONS 

RECORDED IN BK. 14259 , PG. 435 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

EXHIBIT "A" SHEET 1 OF 1 

RIGHT OF WAY AND TEMPORARY SLOPE 

CONSTRUCTION LICENSE EXHIBIT 

PART OF U.S. SURVEY 387, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, 

RANGE 5 EAST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 

150480-ROW-EX_1605.30271.dwg 11/07/2015 8:17am 

8 



EXHIBIT "B" 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY 
CLIENT: CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 
JOB NO.: L12150480 
PARCEL NO.: 16Q530221 
OCTOBER 28, 2015 

Part of Common Lands of River Bend Estates First Addition, being part of U.S. Survey 387, Township 46 
North, Range 5 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, County of St. Louis, State of 
Missouri, reference being had to the plat thereof in the St. Louis County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 
103 on Pages 82 and 83, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a concrete monument at the most westerly corner of said Common Lands of River Bend 
Estates First Addition; thence South 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds East, on the southerly line of said 

Common Lands, 90.24 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

From said Point of Beginning thence northeasterly 88.02 feet on a curve to the right having a radius of 
54.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears South 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds East, 78.60 feet to 
said southerly line of the Common Lands; thence North 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds West, on said 

southerly line, 78.60 to the Point of Beginning. 

Said parcel contains 0.021 Acres, more or less. 

Subject to easements, conditions, and restrictions of record. 

As shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

P:\150480\11  Land Acquisitiorn11 4 ROW Acquisilions116Q530221-DESC PR ROW Dow( 10/2812015 8:40 AM 



EXHIBIT "C" 

DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED TEMPORARY SLOPE CONSTRUCTION LICENSE 

CLIENT: CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

JOB NO.: L12150480 

PARCEL NO.: 16(1530221 

OCTOBER 28, 2015 

Part of Common Lands of River Bend Estates First Addition, being part of U.S. Survey 387, Township 46 

North, Range 5 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, County of St. Louis, State of 

Missouri, reference being had to the plat thereof in the St. Louis County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 

103 on Pages 82 and 83, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a concrete monument at the most westerly corner of said Common Lands of River Bend 

Estates First Addition; thence South 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds East, on the southerly line of said 

Common Lands, 63.22 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

From said Point of Beginning; thence North 48 degrees 01 minutes 31 seconds East, 27.06 feet; thence 

North 76 degrees 30 minutes 58 seconds East, 24.23 feet; thence South 84 degrees 55 minutes 30 

seconpls East, 61.01 feet; thence South 42 degrees 37 minutes 11 seconds East, 38.92 feet; thence South 

04 degrees 41 minutes 25 seconds West, 11.15 feet to said southerly line of the Common Lands of River 

Bend Estates First Addition; thence North 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds West, on said southerly 

line, 26.04 feet; thence northwesterly 88.02 feet on a curve to the left having a radius of 54.00 feet, the 

chord of said curve bears North 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds West, 78.60 feet to said southerly 

line of the Common Lands of River Bend Estates First Addition; thence North 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 

seconds West, on said southerly line, 27.02 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Said parcel contains 0.058 Acres, more or less. 

Subject to easements, conditions, and restrictions of record. 

As shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof. 



DOCUMENT TYPE: 

DATE OF DOCUMENT: 

GRANTOR 

GRANTEE 

RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION 

RBB & TC 
PO BOX 4096 
CHESTERFIELD, MO 63006 

CITY OF CHESTERFIELD 
690 CHESTERFIELD PARKWAY W 
CHESTEFIELD, MO 63017 

PROPERTY ADDRESS 	180 RIVER VALLEY DR 
CHESTERFIELD, MO 63017 

COUNTY LOCATOR # 

CITY/MUNICIPALITY 

LEGAL DESCRIPTION 

16Q530197 

CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 

PART OF LOT 4 OF SUBDIVISION OF 
LANDS OF JACOB STUDT JR., PER PLAT 
BOOK 24 ON PAGE 26 BEING PART OF US 
SURVEY 387, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH, 
RANGE 5 EAST OF THE FIFTH PRINCIPLE 
MERIDIAN, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI 



RIGHT OF WAY DEDICATION 

THIS INDENTURE made and entered into this 	day of 
	 , 20 	, RBB & TC, of the County of St. Louis, State of 

Missouri, Grantor(s) and the City of Chesterfield, 690 Chesterfield Parkway W, 
Chesterfield, MO 63017, their successors and assigns parties, Grantee. 

WITNESSETH: that the Grantor(s), for and in consideration of the sum of One Dollar 
and No/100 ($1.00) and other valuable considerations paid by the Grantee, the receipt 

of which is hereby acknowledged, does by these presents, Grant, Bargain and Sell, 
Convey and Confirm unto the Grantee, the following described premises, for road 

purposes and public use forever situated in the City of Chesterfield, County of St. Louis 
and State of Missouri, to wit: all the real estate indicated by the cross hatched 

r'a'M''',\X‘ vc on Exhibit "A" and as described in Exhibit "B" both of which are 

attached hereto. 

TO HAVE AND TO HOLD the same, together with all rights and appurtenances to the 

same belonging, unto the Grantee, and to its assigns and successors forever. 

A Temporary Slope Construction License for the purpose of making cuts, fills, and 
sloping embankment, etc. if any, providing working room and implementing any and all 
other construction items over the real estate indicated by111//IIIIIIIIIII  on the attached 
exhibit "A" and as described in Exhibit "C" until such time as the River Valley Closure 

Project #2015-PW- l4 may be completed and accepted by the City of Chesterfield. Upon 
the granting or denial of acceptance by the City of Chesterfield or its assigns this 

License shall terminate. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the above named Grantor(s) has/have executed these presents 

the day and year written above. 

By: 
Signature(s) 	RBB & TC 

Print Name(s)/Title 

Address 

Telephone 



INDIVIDUAL NOTARY 

STATE OF MISSOURI 
) SS. 

COUNTY OF SAINT LOUIS 

On this 	day of 	 , 20_ before me personally appeared 
	 to me known to be the person(s) described in and who 
executed the foregoing instrument, and acknowledged that he/she executed the same as his/her 
free act and deed. 

IN TESTIMONY WHEREOF, I have hereunto set my hand and affixed my official 
seal in the County and State aforesaid, the day and year first above written. 

Notary Public 

My Commission Expires: 	  



B 

r:  150480 -RUN -EX_1605/01974ng 10/20/2015 1207pn 

100' 100' 0 

LEGEND  

❑ 	CONCRETE MONUMENT FOUND 

	 EXISTING RIGHT OF WAY 

	 EXISTING LOT LINE 

— 	PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY 

— PROPOSED T.S.C.E. 

CURVE RADIUS LENGTH CHORD LENGTH CHORD BEARING 

Cl 54,00' 56.07' 53.58' SO4'12'10"E 

C2 312.93' 3.21' 3.21' N46'10'52"W 

N/F 
RBB & TC 

160530197 

17814 / 1732 

PT. OF LOT 4 OF 

SUBDIVISION OF LANDS OF 

JACOB STUDT JR. 
P.B. 24, PG. 26 

COVENANTS, CONDITIONS AND RESTRICTIONS 
RECORDED IN BK. 14259 , PG. 435 

PR ROW=6028 S.F.± / 0.138 AC.± 

TSCL=972 S.F.± / 0.022 AC.± 

LOT 127 

60540471 
C2 

MI NM 11•1111111111•■ 
NMI =I 

GRAPHIC SCALE 

EXHIBIT "A" SHEET 1 OF 1 

RIGHT OF WAY AND TEMPORARY SLOPE 

CONSTRUCTION LICENSE EXHIBIT 

PART OF U.S. SURVEY 387, TOWNSHIP 46 NORTH 

RANGE 5 EAST OF THE 5TH PRINCIPAL MERIDIAN 

ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI EXPIRES 12/31/16 

RIVER BEND 
\ ESTATES 

FIRST 

ADDITION 
\ BK. 103, PG. 82 

LOT 128 
160540543 

	

P.O.C. T.S.C.L, 	 ?I\C\C 
PT. OF 

ROD' 

	

,/ 5 	 \.0\ 

c,\A
\C.INGO 	

\ 	P.O. B. 	T.S.C.L 

P. I.B. R.O.W. 	Iss 
COMMON LANDS 
OF RIVER BEND \ 

ESTATES 1ST 
• 	ADDITION 

Se30'38,4,„ 

8 .49 

7/0 •99, 

R=.312,93' 

L=79.52', 

CHB= N53'45'18"W 

CH=79,31' 

168 83 	/S802'63.80'4421 16Q530221 

P.B. 103, 

.1(1 

441/ L1 	

PG. 82 & 83 

LINE BEARING LENGTH 

L1 SO4'41'25"W 39.35' 

L2 538'46'02"W 41.00' 

L3 S25'32'29"W 21.90' 

12 

<e, 	L3 

0 



0 F 
0 

DEkEK, 

Ntim ER 

i/l.ki2OID020071 

EXHIBIT 4" 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED RIGHT OF WAY 
CLIENT: CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 
JOB NO.: L12150480 
PARCEL NO.: 16Q530197 
OCTOBER 28, 2015 

Part of Lot 4 of Subdivision of Lands of Jacob Studt Jr., being part of U.S. Survey 387, Township 46 North, 
Range 5 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, County of St. Louis, State of Missouri, 
reference being had to the plat thereof on the St. Louis County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 24 on Page 
26, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Beginning at a concrete monument at the most westerly corner of the Common Lands of River Bend 
Estates First Addition, reference being had to the plat thereof in the St. Louis County Recorder's Office in 
Plat Book 103 on Pages 82 and 83; thence South 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds East, on the 
southerly line of said Common Lands of River Bend Estates First Addition, 168.83 feet; thence 
southeasterly 56.07 feet on a curve to the right having a radius of 54.00 feet, the chord of said curve 
bears South 04 degrees 12 minutes 10 seconds East, 53.58 feet; thence South 25 degrees 32 minutes 29 
seconds West, 21.90 feet to the northeasterly right of way of River Valley Drive; thence northwesterly 
on said right of way line the following two (2) courses and distances: (1) Northwesterly 79.52 feet on a 
curve to the left having a radius of 312.93 feet, the chord of said curve bears North 53 degrees 45 
minutes 18 seconds West, 79.31 feet; (2) North 61 degrees 02 minutes 07 seconds West, 110.99 feet to 

the Point of Beginning. 

Said parcel contains 0.138 Acres, more or less. 

Subject to easements, conditions, and restrictions of record. 

As shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

PM 50480 MI Land Acquisilior011 4 ROW Acquisi6onsM80880 1 07-DESC PR ROW Oocx 1012812015 8:40 AM 



EXHIBIT "C" 
DESCRIPTION OF PROPOSED TEMPORARY SLOPE CONSTRUCTION LICENSE 
CLIENT: CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, MISSOURI 
JOB NO.; L12150480 
PARCEL NO.: 16Q530197 
OCTOBER 28, 2015 

Part of Lot 4 of Subdivision of Lands of Jacob Studt Jr., being part of U.S. Survey 387, Township 46 North, 
Range 5 East of the Fifth Principal Meridian, City of Chesterfield, County of St. Louis, State of Missouri, 
reference being had to the plat thereof on the St. Louis County Recorder's Office in Plat Book 24 on Page 
26, and being more particularly described as follows: 

Commencing at a concrete monument at the most westerly corner of the Common Lands of River Bend 
Estates First Addition, reference being had to the plat thereof in the St. Louis County Recorder's Office in 
Plat Book 103 on Pages 82 and 83; thence South 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds East, on the 
southerly line of said Common Lands, 168.83 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

From said Point of Beginning; thence continuing South 80 degrees 38 minutes 42 seconds East, on said 
southerly line of Common Lands, 26.04 feet; thence South 04 degrees 41 minutes 25 seconds West, 
39.35 feet; thence South 38 degrees 46 minutes 02 seconds West, 41.00 feet to the northeasterly right 
of way of River Valley Drive; thence northeasterly, on said right of way, 3.21 feet on a curve to the right 
having a radius of 312.93 feet, the chord of said curve bears North 46 degrees 10 minutes 52 seconds 
West, 3.21 feet; thence North 25 degrees 32 minutes 29 seconds East, 21,90 feet; thence northwesterly 
56.07 feet on a curve to the left having a radius of 54.00 feet, the chord of said curve bears North 04 
degrees 12 minutes 10 seconds West, 53.58 feet to the Point of Beginning. 

Said parcel contains 0.022 Acres, more or less. 

Subject to easements, conditions, and restrictions of record. 

As shown on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and made a part hereof. 

PAI 50480111 Land Acquisilionkl 1 2 Temporary Easernents118020197•DESC TSCL Docx 10128/2015 8:40 AM 



LEGISLATION - PLANNING COMMISSION 

BILL NO. 3059 AMENDS THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF CHESTERFIELD BY 
CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "NU" NON-URBAN DISTRICT TO 
AN "R-4" RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR A 2.13 ACRE TRACT OF LAND 
LOCATED ON THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF OLIVE BOULEVARD AND 
BRAEFIELD DRIVE (SECOND READING; PLANNING COMMISSION 
RECOMMENDS APPROVAL) 



BILL NO. 3059 	 ORDINANCE NO. 	  

AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE ZONING ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF 
CHESTERFIELD BY CHANGING THE BOUNDARIES OF AN "NU" NON-URBAN 
DISTRICT TO AN "R-4" RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT FOR A 2.13 ACRE TRACT 
OF LAND LOCATED AT THE NORTHEAST CORNER OF OLIVE BOULEVARD 
AND BRAEFIELD DRIVE (P.Z. 09-2015 FRIENDSHIP VILLAGE OF WEST 
COUNTY [15239, 15249 & 15255 OLIVE BLVD] - 185640272, 18S640326 & 
18S640162). 

WHEREAS, the petitioner, Friendship Village of West County, has 
requested a change in zoning from an "NU" Non-Urban District to an "R-4" 
Residential District for 2.13 acres located at the northeast corner of Olive 
Boulevard and Braefield Drive; and, 

WHEREAS, a Public Hearing was held before the Planning Commission on 
October 26, 2015; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission, having considered said request, 
recommended approval of the change of zoning; and, 

WHEREAS, the Planning and Public Works Committee, having considered 
said request, recommended approval of the change of zoning; and, 

WHEREAS, the City Council, having considered said request, voted to 
approve the change of zoning request. 

NOW THEREFORE BE IT ORDAINED BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE 
CITY OF CHESTERFIELD, ST. LOUIS COUNTY, MISSOURI, AS FOLLOWS: 

Section 1.  City of Chesterfield Unified Development Code and the Official 
Zoning District Map, which are part thereof, are hereby amended by establishing 
an "R-4" Residential District designation for 2.13 acres located at the northeast 
corner of Olive Boulevard and Braefield Drive and as described as follows: 

A tract of land being part of Lot 2 of Hugo Essen Farm in U. S. Survey 154 
86 157, Township 45, North, Range 4 East in St. Louis County, Missouri, 
being more particularly described as follows: 



Beginning at a point on the Northern right of way line of Olive Boulevard 
(variable width) and the Eastern line of Braefield, a subdivision recorded in 
Plat Book 331 Pages 80 and 81 of the St. Louis County Land Records Office, 
from which a found 1/2" Rebar bears South 30 degrees 34 minutes East, 
0.25 feet; thence along the Eastern line of Braefield subdivision, North 30 
degrees 33 minutes 39 seconds West a distance of 304.53 feet to a set 1/2" 
x 18" rebar with cap stamped "Marler 347-D" (Typical) being on the 
Southern line of Lot A of Friendship Village of West County Boundary 
Adjustment Plat, as recorded in Plat Book 356 Page 143; thence along the 
Southern line of said Lot A, North 57 degrees 43 minutes 34 seconds East 
a distance of 158.84 feet to a found 3/4" iron pipe; South 30 degrees 35 
minutes 40 seconds East a distance of 134.92 feet to a point from which a 
found 3/4" iron pipe bears North 16 degrees 00 minutes East 0.13 feet; 
North 57 degrees 46 minutes 10 seconds East a distance of 242.96 feet to 
a point from which a found 1/2" rebar with cap stamped "L.S. 134-D" bears 
South 00 degrees 43 minutes, 0.11 feet; South 30 degrees 31 minutes 42 
seconds East a distance of 180.48 feet to a set rebar on the Northern right 
of way line of Olive Boulevard; thence along said Northern right of way line, 
South 58 degrees 21 minutes 41 seconds West a distance of 343.27 feet to 
a found 5/8" rebar with an aluminum cap; thence South 63 degrees 56 
minutes 01 seconds West a distance of 41.19 feet to a point from which a 
found 5/8" rebar with an aluminum cap bears south 0.1 feet; thence South 
66 degrees 53 minutes 32 seconds West a distance of 17.48 feet to the point 
of beginning containing 92,9Q0 square feet or 2.13 acres more or less as 
surveyed by Marler Surveying Company Inc. 

Section 2. The preliminary approval, pursuant to the City of Chesterfield 
Unified Development Code is granted, subject to all of the ordinances, rules and 
regulations. 

Section 3. The City Council, pursuant to the petition filed by Friendship 
Village of West County in P.Z. 09-2015, requesting the rezoning embodied in this 
ordinance, and pursuant to the recommendation of the City of Chesterfield 
Planning Commission that said petition be granted and after a public hearing, 
held by the Planning Commission on the 26 th  day of October 2015, does hereby 
adopt this ordinance pursuant to the power granted to the City of Chesterfield 
under Chapter 89 of the Revised Statutes of the State of Missouri authorizing 
the City Council to exercise legislative power pertaining to planning and zoning. 



Section 4. This ordinance and the requirements thereof are exempt from 
the warning and summons for violations as set out in Section 8 of the City of 
Chesterfield Unified Development Code. 

Section 5. This ordinance shall be in full force and effect from and after 
its passage and approval. 

Passed and approved this day of 	 , 2015 

MAYOR 

ATTEST: 

CITY CLERK 

FIRST READING HELD: 11/16/2015 


	AGENDA REVIEW 
	Page 2

	AGENDA
	Page 2
	Page 3

	AGENDA REVIEW
	PROPOSED BUDGET
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8

	MINUTES 11.16.15
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6

	UPCOMING MTGS/EVENTS
	RECOMMENDATIONS F&A COMM.
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17

	RECOMMENDATIONS - P/PW COMM.
	Page 2
	Page 3
	Page 4
	Page 5
	Page 6
	Page 7
	Page 8
	Page 9
	Page 10
	Page 11
	Page 12
	Page 13
	Page 14
	Page 15
	Page 16
	Page 17
	Page 18
	Page 19
	Page 20
	Page 21
	Page 22
	Page 23
	Page 24
	Page 25

	LEGISLATION-PC
	BILL NO. 3059
	Page 2
	Page 3




